
BORG INSTITUTE
ENDOCRINOLOGY: Aourr, Pronrnrc & Repnooucnve
Walter Borg, M.D., Medical Director
501 W. St. Mary Blvd, Suite 120,
Lafayette, LA 70506
Phone: (337) 519 419; Fax: (337) 367 8836; www.borqinstitute.com;

C)ctober 19,2008

Via Certified Mail & Fax: (225) 763-8780
Ms. Deborah S. Grier
Executil 'e Secretarl
Louisiana Board of Ethics
P.O. Box 4668
Baton Rouge. LA 70821

Re: Louisiana Board of Ethics Docket No. BD 2008-918
Complaint against Ceci l ia A. Mouton. M.D. i  Louisiana State Board of Medical  L,xaminers

Dear Ms. Grier.
This letter is a follow up on the previous correspondence to Louisiana State Attorney General (errclosed).
We have been infrlrmed by the Attornev General Office that our concerns regarding conduct of Officers
o1- the Louisiana State Board of Medical  l :xarniners (LSBME) fal l  wi thin the purview of your Agency.
Enclosed please f ind the evident iary mater ial  that rve hope wi l l  help you to invest igate the matter.  Several
years ago we became concerned about a rnisconduct of the LSBME Officers. Now, we are even nlore
worr ied that instead of addressing our concerns in the publ ic interest,  LSBME is try ing to cover-up the
obvious transgressions of their  employees.

State Medical  Boards have been ini t ia l ly set up to protect the publ ic frorn unqual i f ied rnedical
pract i t ioners. Unfortunately.  due to the lack of an) extenral  oversight and accourrtabi l i ty.  manl 'of  those
agencies became state sanctioned sanctuaries tbr incompetence and malfeasance. The Medical Boards are
not onl l  fai l ing i ts missiorr to protect the publ ic -  they actual ly put the publ ic in grave jeopardy.
Thousands of pat ients are being denied an access to qual i ty medical  care. This happens due to i l l -
conceived effort of the Boards to correct their past errors of excessive leniency. At the same time.
hou,ever.  numerous incompetent pract i t ioners are al lowed to harm the publ ic.  This absurd si tuat ion takes
place since rampant corruption flourishes under the current system - that lacks any checks and balances.

The malfunct ioning system of physicians'  discipl ine has to be changed. Otherwise the publ ic wi l l
continue to suffer due to outrageous acts of the same champion who has been initially' appointed to
protect i t .  We and other concerned ci t izens ui th u'horn we are in contact -  wi l lg ladly meet with your staff
members to present the evidentiary material arrd the list of witnesses to corroborate our concerns. Please
be assured of our desire to assist you in any \!a)' possible in ethical reform of our state that has been
spearheaded by Governor Bobby Jindal.

S incere l l .

/lolxrBo,4,Vt D
Walter P. Borg, M.D.

Delegate, Lafayette Parish Medical Society, Louisiana Stule Medical Society
Councilor, Council on Socioeconomics, Louisiuna Slule Medical Sociely
Member, Reproductive Medicine, Socioeconomics and Members Advocucy Committees AACE

W B :  t l
Enclosures (a l l  enclosures v ia mai l )
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Monica A. Borg, M.D.

Wrlren Bono, M.D.
MEMBER, REpRoDUclvE Meorcrxe Couurlree, Auenrcax AssoctATroN oF CLtrutcnl ENDocRrNoLoctsrs

Me Nern, SooorcoHorrrrc Couliurrer, Aurnrcnx AssocrATroN oF CLrrurcaL ENDocRrNoLocrsrs
CouHcton, CouHcrr- oH SocroecoHoNtcs, LourstANA SrArr Mrotclt- Socterv
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STATE OF LOUISIANA
DEPARTIVIENT OF STATE CIVIL SERVICE

LOUISIANA BOARD OF EThIICS
P O BOX 4368

BATON ROUGE, LA 70821
(225\ 763-8777

FAX (225) 763-8780
1 -800-842-6630

www e th r cs . s l a l e . l a . us

t  0/ I  3/2008

Ms. Monica A. Borg
103 I  Cool idge Blvd #51 580
Lafayette, LA 70505

C0Nl ' ru [ . r {  l i ne

Disclosure of anY
informat ion conta ined
lrerein or i i l  connection
herewith is a criminal

rnisdemeanor Pursuant tG
LSA-RS A^  "  ' \ ' r i l 2 i - (13 )

Re: Louisiana Board of Ethics Docket No. BD 2008-918
Conrplaint against LR. State Board of Medicai ExarninersiCeciiia Mouton, NID

Dear Ms. Borg:

This is to acknowledge receipt of your correspondence or complaint as referenced above.
It will be placed on the Board's agenda for consideration at its October 27,2008 meeting.

Your inclusion of the above docket number in communications with this office will be
appreciated.

LOUISIANA BOARD OF ETHICS

Deborah S. Grier
Executive Secretary

DSG:bma

A lbi!^,

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
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Louisiana Board of Ethics
P O Box 4368
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821

Re: Consumer Complaint filed by Monica A. Bong

Dear Sir/Madam:

Attached, please find an inquiry recentny neceived by the Office of the Attorney General.
Because it appears to fall within the pr-rrview of your agency, it is forwarded for
disposition as you deem appropriate. The consurner has been notified of this referral.

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

Very truly yours,

.TAN{ES D. "BUDDV" CA,LD\VEX,N,
,A"ttomey General

isabel Wingerter, Deputy Director
Fublic Protection

Enclosure
C: Monica A. Borg
1031 Cool idge Blvd.  #51580
Lafayette, Louisiana 70505

Trinicia Bryantfor



Septernber 26,2008

Via Fax and Certffied tufail #: 7AA6 0tr00 0005 9617 0448
Robert Marier, MD, MHA, FACF
Executive Director
Louisiana State Board of Medical Exarniners
630 Camp St; New Orleans, L,A 70130

Re: {Jnprofessional conduct anad poor 3udgrnent of Cecilia A" Nflouton' M.D.

License number: MD 018270

Dear Dr. Marier,
As you are aware, Dr. Cecilia A. N/louton has been and is employed as an lnvestigator for the Louisiana

Staie Board of Medical Examiners. Based upon information obtained from reliable sources including

Mr. Matthew Brown, Esq. of Law Office of Sullivan, Stolier and Resor (SSR), Dr. Mouton started to

see socially, and subsequently entered into a romantic relationship with Mr. Jack Stolier, Esq. - senior

partner at 
-SSR. 

Represintation of physicians before LSBME constituted a large part of SSR activities.

it has to be noted that Dr. Mouton began her affair with Mr. Stolier while both she and Mr. Stolier were

married and had children with other indiuziduals.

Dr. Mouton continued her work as I-SEME Xmvestigator, while seeing socially and even having an

adulterous affair with the senior lawyerfronn tke lawJirm that represented physicians as advercarial

parties to i-Snmn. Dr. Mouton's comdwct is reflective af, a very poor iudgment trt is also

unprofes sio nal and unet h ical.

LSBME may refuse to issue, or revoke any tricense or impose probationary or other restrictions on any

license or iermit issued for "unprof,essional conduct" (LA Medical Practice ,A.ct, X-a. Rev. Sta.

$  1 2 8 s . A . 1  3 )

Therefore, I respectfully request that tr-SEVIE, should consider Dr. Cecilia Mouton to be in violation of

the Louisiana Medical Fractice Act provision on "unprofessional conduct" (Ld Medical Practice Act,

La. Rev. Sta.36 51285.4.13) and appiy appropriate sanctions. Such sanction by n-SBME will be in

keeping with Governor Jindal's attempt at ethics reform in our state.

Sincerely,
fi, t / l/) ,/,', 

n-

r U.o'.v-^-p, /<- {7>^*, / '

Monica A. Borg, M.D. /

103 I  Coo l idge B lvd ,  #  51580
Lafayette, LA 70505

CC: Honorable Govemor BobbY Jindal
Rita Arceneaux, Executive Assistant, I-SBME
James T. Daly, Screening Counsel, i-ouisiana Attomey Disciplinary Board

? Honorable James D. Cald@ttal
J. James P ation
Jeffrey P. Harris, MD, FACP, President, American college of Physicians



June 20, 2008
Via Certified Mail 7006 0100 005 9617 0400

Return Receipt Requested

Honorable James D. Caldwetl
State of Louisiana Attomev General
300 Capitol Drive
Baton Rouge, LA 70802
F ax: 22 5 -3 2 6 -6'7 9 3 : 225 -3 26 - 6 1 97 ; 22 5 -3 12 -87 03

Re: Fol low-up regarding case of : Cecilia A. Mouton, M.D., and Alfred Gaudet, R.P\L
Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners (LSBME) Investigators

Dear Mr. Caldwell ,
This lener is a follow up on my previous correspondence to office dated July 09, 2006 and August 29. It was brought to
my attention that Dr. Marier of Louisiana State of Medical Examiner has been contacting various entities to which I have
filed similar complaints about the above referenced matter. I am deeply saddened by the fact that in his correspondence
Dr. Marier has clearly mischaracterized and/or omined important facts related to my legitimate grievances. Specifically:

Dr. Marier claimed that I have "no first hand knowledge" about the events which transpired in late 2002 and ultimately
lead to signing of the Consent Order in October 2003. Therefore - according to him - I am unable to asses them correctly.
lnterestingly, as per LSME Newsletter (enclosed) Dr. Marier has joined the Board on June 1,2006 that is four (4) years
after the concerning me events took place. Therefore Dr. Marier himself also has no first hand knowledge regarding those
events and has to rely on the documents and testimonies of third parties. lt is my worry that some of the facts of this
complex case might have been misrepresented to Dr. Marier by such third panies. I am a retired physician-scientist and a
former Yale University researcher, therefore I am deeply distraught to find my self in the undesired by me conflict with
Dr. Marier who is an alumnus of this illustrious medical school.

Dr. Marier asserted that none of contacted by me entities "took any actions" regarding my grievances. This is untrue:
o American College of Physicians. ln fact, I have contacted your Office based upon the specific recommendation of

the American College of Physicians (ACP). As can bee seen from the enclosed letter signed by Dr. John Tooker of
ACP my complaint was carefully reviewed and action were taken within the unfortunately limited investigative
capabilities of this organization. In fact, ACP went beyond their call of duty and contacted the Federation of State
Medical Boards as to the appropriate review authority for complaints regarding the State Medical Boards. Moreover,
Dr. Tooker clearly stated that: "should a state review of these circumstances find that an ACP member has violated
the tenets of medical ethics and professionalism. Please forward the fficial report to us and we will reconsider this
matter in light of those finding".

o Association of American Physicians and Surgeons (AAPS) has filed the Amicus Brief on behalf of my husband
with Louisiana Supreme Court (enclosed). Please note the following excerpt from this document: "AAPS has a
strong interest in promoting the integrity and accountability of medical board disciplinary proceedings. The
membership of A4PS has a substantial and legitimate interest in the outcome of this case. All practicing physicians,
including thousands of members of .Aa,PS and many in Louisiana, are subject to such disciplinary proceedings. The
ruling below. which appears to Jlatly prohibit the deposition of investigators, makes it impossible to uncover
u'rongdoing and even discrimination. Nothing supports such a sweeping ruling, least of all confidentiality statutes
designed to protecl the physician rather than wrongdoing."

. Other entities. I was contacted by the representatives of other entities with the explanation that investigation of
LSBME actions is simply not within their jurisdiction. Those agencies included but were not limited to US.
Department of Health and Human Services and Field Representative of Congressman Bobby Jindal. Therefore my

complaints were not just dismissed as non-meritorious as Dr. Marrier appears to purport.

Apparently my complaints have been characterized by Dr. Marier as "ill-informed", "defamatory" and "unfounded". I
respectfully disagree with such characterization for the following reasons. First, my complaints were made in good faith,
without malice, and in the reasonable belief that such action was warranted to protect the public. Hundreds of patients

Louisiana were denied an access to highly qualified physician from year 2003 to 2006 due to very flawed investigative

techniques of LSBME. Since my husband practice was located in the area underserved by endocrinolory his inability to care

those patients was especially detrimental to them. As evidenced by enclosed LSBME Order for Reinstatement of Unrestricted

License dated 11130106 my husband's license and prescribing privileges have been finally restored on that day. Incredulously, it
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took three (3) years for LSBME to determine that the physician known to his peers as an abstinent - was not a drug abuser (!).
All to detriment to many patients who were unable to see him secondary to manage care panels delisting triggered by his
unreasonable monitoring contract. Please note that in their letter dated Jwte 22, 2004 (enclosed) two appointed by the LSBME
experts Dr. Gad and Mr. Kimball, LCSW pleaded with the Medical Boars to immediately terminate unnecessaq/ monitoring.
As they stated: "Dr. Borg's time and energt would be better sertedfocusing on the care of his patients and management of his
practice " . Those pleas were igrored by LSBME.

It is my understanding that anyone has the right to complain to any regulatory entity. I also trust that my right to free
speech is protected by the Constitution. I did not speculate frivolously about personal character of any Board Member, nor
did I question their past performance with the Board. I was simply concemed about the well documented actions of those
agents in the context of the specific case. Those well evidenced facts were clearly described in my previous letters.
Astonishingly, Dr. Marier provided highly flawed explanations in response to my allegations. Moreover while discussing them
he omitted important mitigating factors and exculpatory evidences on behalf of my husband. At the same time he disregarded
or tried to minimize the gravity of the significant evidences of the misconduct of LSBME employees. Please note the
following:
. Improperly sending Dr. Borg into Palmetto Addiction Recovery Center (PARC) for evaluation by a its

director who was a relapsing alcoholic.
o Doctor Borg admission was not voluntary. In its explanation Dr. Marrier omitted a crucial fact that Dr.

Borg has filed a malpractice lawsuit against all staff members of this Addiction Recovery center (enclosure:
MRP submission). The lawsuit which is currently under way - was filed since the independent from Palmetto
specialists expressed opinion hat the actions taken with respect to Dr. Borg were not appropriate. In a
contrast to Dr. Marier's claim Dr. Walter Borg did not voluntarilv present himself to Palmetto. He presented
to Palmetto because the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners gave him very little choice. He did not
personally desire treatment, but was concemed that the Board would take his license away if he did not
comply. There was no medical evidence of substance abuse. Under such circumstances, the
recommendations of Palmetto were simply too harsh. Dr. Borg should have been referred to a specialist for
monitoring, and that specialist, upon monitoring Dr. Borg, could have determined that there was no basis for
a finding of chemical dependency. One year of drug testing and professional follow up would not have been
needed. Palmetto's treatment and recommendation requiring continuing monitoring, urine testing and
counseling was inappropriate. was not consented to, and caused Dr. Borg inconvenience, embarrassment,
humiliation, financial loss and damage to his professional reputation, which should not have occurred.

o Doctor Borg's attomeys complained immediately about the Palmetto's evaluation. ln a contrast to Dr.
Marier assertions serious concems about Palmetto's evaluation of Dr. Borg were raised by his attomeys
shortly after his discharge from PARC. This is evidenced by the enclosed letter dated, February 11,2003to
LSBME attomey Mr. McKinney (CC: Dr. Mouton, LSBME Investigator). This letter was signed by both of
Dr. Borg's attomeys. The attomeys obviously did not criticized Palmetto's conclusion that Dr. Borg was not
a drug addict. They were however, gravely concemed about very unreasonable monitoring
recommendations. Moreover, Dr. Borg's counsels clearly pointed out that PARC had a clear conflict of
interest, which might compromised PARC's ability to provide the unbiased assessment of Dr. Borg. The
letter contained also a carefully crafted proposal for amicable for both parties conclusion of this matter. Dr.
Borg was eager to put all this unpleasant experience behind him and concentrate on his practice, rather than
continue to incur legal costs related to the protracted legal dispute with LSBME. He understood Board's
concems and wanted to address them as soon as possible in the public's interest, and without jeopardizing
continuity of care for his patients. For the unknown reasons this letter and the proposed immediate solution
were totally ignored by LSBME. In fact. there was no further communication on the part of the LSBME until
June of 2003, and no monitoring efforts whatsoever took place until late October 2003. What was the cause
for a ten (10) moth delay - if the LSBME was truly concemed about the possibility of physician's
impairment in this case? In summary, evidence shows that Dr. Borg and his counsels did not agreed with the
Palmefto's recommendation he was forced to accept them or face costly and protracted legal dispute with
LSBME.

. Disregards of Board's own guideline during Investigation.
o FSMB Guidelines. Dr. Marier does not dispute nor under the circumstances of the case - he can dispute the

fact the Dr. Mouton did not follow the guidelines of "Repoft of the Ad Hoc Committee on Physician
lmpairment of the Federation of State Medical Boards (FSMB)". Instead, Dr. Marier tries to minimize
graviry and significance of those guidelines calling them a "mere recommendation". He omitted however to
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mention' the FSMB has explicitll established those guidelines with the goal - and I quote verbatim to"Develop elements of a model impaired physician program (IPP1 to be recommendej n stute medical
boards along with guidelines to promote undormity in rules/regulations regarding impaired physicians.',
(see enclosure - emphasis added). It is logical the FSBME would emphasize uniforml4, in rulis/iegulation
and not as Dr- Marier suggested/exibility in the approach to this important issue. The flexible interpretation
of the guidelines can result in the improper practices. I argue that this precisely happened in my husband
case.

o LSBME Guidelines. My most serious concern related to Dr. Marier's explanation is related to the fact that
despite the FSBME explicit call for uniformity - LSBME does not appear to have any uniformed codified
and,/or written guidelines addressing physician impairment or drug diversion. Dr. Marier did not quote any
Louisiana Revised Statute, or even anl intemal LSBME document which would deal in details with those
important issues. lnstead, he casually noted that "the Board commonly asks the afected physician to meet
with the Board's Investigating Oficer and to submit to an evaluation for possible substance abuse"
(emphasis added.l. If this is indeed a case the misconduct of the LSBME employees is even grater.
Prescription medications abuse and their diversion is a serious problem by Dr. Marier's own admission. In
addition to swift identification of dangerous to the public impaired physicians the Board has also a duty to
promptly clear the wrongly accused physician so that the patient's access to valuable community resource is
not interrupted without valid reason. It is therefore unthinkable that the state agency charged with those tasks
would not develop and apply stringent procedures in dealing with those issues but continue to relay on" common and customary practices " .

Using false pharmacy reports during investigation.
o Dr. Borg's own Documcntatian was destroyed Dr. Marier neglected to mention a pivotal fact necessary to

understand the context of this issue. In October 2002, just a month before meeting with the LSBME Investigators
Dr. Borg's New lberia's oftice and all his documentation was destroyed by hurricane Lilli. He had to hastily
relocate what was left from his practice to city of Lafayette due to the lack of the suitable replacement facility in
New lberia- There was no way to cross reference the erroneous records presented to him by the Investigator with
his own documentation at that time. The false data created an impression that indeed someone has been stealing or
ordering medication behind his back. This absurd notion was dismissed by subsequent independent investigation,
but as Dr. Marier himself noted my husband has wrongly believed for the long time that such unbeknownst to him
nefarious acts were happening. Such wrong conclusions were inevitable since the data showed to him were false
and he could not recognize many of his prescriptions.

o Reckkss negligence of LSBME dala gathering. As a former Yale Research scientist and author of numerous
publications based upon data analysis I am appalled by the cavalier attitude of Dr. Marier toward the accuracy of
such critical evidentiary data such as pharmacy reports. I am in disbelieve that Yale Univenity trained physician
would make a casual statement that "the level of the detailwas not relevant". The established scientists has been
dismissed from the prestigious posts due to lack of attention to details. The patients died since their physicians did
not paid attention to the dosage.

o Dr. Borg was licensed by DEA and LA department of health to prescribe and dispense Controlled
Substance. His practice at that time was a combination of Primary Care and reproductive endocrinology and
he prescribed all his medication legitimatety within a scope of his practice. The term "large amounts"
repeated as a mantra by LSBME is ver;- vague and non-scientific. All one need to do is to calculate the total
amounts of drugs actually prescribed by him and analyze it in the contexts of how many patients he has been
treating and what was actual dosage per patient. Such calculations show that he followed conservative
treatment practices consistent with contemporary medical literature. There was not a single case of overdose
among Dr. Borg patients. Nobody has died or suffered bodily damage due to his treatment.

o There was a banage of defamotory information about my husbund supplied by local compet'tlor. Dr. Marier
neglected to note that one important factor which clearly influenced Board's Decision, w€rs a memo
generated by Mr. Gaudet on l1/04/02 (enclosed) describing various maliciously derogatory information
related to my husband practice supplied by the local compounding pharmacy. My husband office was
situated next to Delaune's Pharmacy and soon he has discovered that those pharmacists are engaged in the
very dubious compounding practices including peddling Bioidentical Hormones and disease management
program. The conflict developed and escalated. Please note that even after my husband moved away from
this neiberghud he continued to be very active and vocal about the dubious effectiveness of so called

Bioidentical Hormones. He has been subsequently appointed as a member of Reproductive Medicine
Committee of American Association of Clinical Endocrinologists. In this capacity he just has published a
very well received by his peers papers criticizing the concept ofcompounding (enclosed). It is not surprising
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that the local compounding pharmacl' considered such a physician to be a dangerous interloper and make
any attempts to portray him in the worst possible context. It is almost amazingthat soon after he left the city
of New Iberia this "rogue" physician became a delegate for Lafayette Parish medical society and was
appointed to serve on two prestigious committees of the major subspecialty society. While he was receiving
these recognitions, his patients were still denied access to his services due the negligence of LSBME.

o Dr. Borg had impression thot he had additional dispensing certilicate required by LSBME. See enclosure
for explanation.

o Dr. Borg has never treated himself. There was no need for it. He suffered from no chronic pain, had a
primary care physician and as demonstrated beyond any doubt he was never addicted. Those explanations
were brought and explained to the Boards attention - see enclosure. For reason unknown Board continued to
disregards those clear facts.

o Dr. Borg indeed treated me. This is was situation outcome of which I would never predict. I do not
understand why hundreds of patients and their physician were penalized for long three long years since the
*'ife of this physician considered him to be the best specialist to care for her. Sadly AMA code of ethics is
still a " Terra lncognita" even for graduates of prestigious program. Dr. Borg was not an AMA member and
he was not aware of the AMA principle E-8. I 9 related to treatment of family members. Instead he relied on
ACP code of ethics and sincerely believed that his actions were ethically justified at that time. There is no
dispute that when the LSBME lnvestigator pointed out those issues to him he immediately embraced the
AMA code and transferred my care to other physician. I complied with my husband's wishes and did not
pressure him to violate his new ethical rules he adopted. Nor I have any intension to do so in the future. Still,
I do not understand why no body from LSBME talked to me during investigation, to establish the
background of my treatment. I am also gravely concem about other very pertinent fact which Dr. Marier has
somehow omitted. The Board lnvestigator until today was unable to retum my full and intact medical file
which was submitted to the Board on their request just before Hurricane Lilli. I find this very worrisome.

o Improper Communication by Dr. Kim Leblanc. (enclosure)
o Despite Dr. Mariers attempts to minimize the blistering character of this letter, its tone is clearly

intimidating. The threats about starting 'injunctive proceedings" to virtually violate my basic rights
guaranteed under U.S Constitution have no legal grounds. Instead of addressing the merits of my allegations in
this letter Dr. Leblanc attempts to deny me my First Amendment Rights, and Equal Protection and Due Process
of the Law. This is clear aftempt of the state official to use the legal system to abridge the civil liberties of a
single individual. Even if an allegation of the individual are ultimately dismissed no one can prevent any one
from complaining in a good faith to the regulatory entities established for the sole purpose of such
individual's protection.

Dr. Marier represented that the Consent Order was never appealed. This is inaccurate statement and based upon
technicaliry. Consent order was not technically appealed in the court of law. However, as you are well aware in the view
of the new evidentiary material which was unknown to Dr. Borg and his lawyers at the time of the have appealed several
timed to LSBME asking for the modification and ultimately nullification of this Consent Order in the interest of justice
based upon Article 1949 (Vice of Consent) of the Louisiana Civil Code. All those Petitions were denied by the previous
LSBME Executive Director Dr. John Bobear.

I am sad to say but the above explanations by Dr. Marier do not pass the muster of objective validity. They are rather a
misconstrued attempt to cover up clear problems within his agency which should be identified and rectified in the public
interest. As history shows - such cover up aftempts usually backfire. In summary my complaints are not rooted in my
dismay about the lawful Consent Order. nor I am engaged in any vicious and unfounded attacks on the Boards and its
employees. I am a humble member of the public who is merely asking forthe unbiased explanations of very disturbing
facts reflecting very poorly on the performance of specific employees of very important and venerable state agency,
whose main purpose is to serve and protect.

Sincerely.

//-;. /- [\*a // D
Monica A. Borg, M.D.
604 Jacqueline Dr.
New Iberia, LA 70563
Email: mlyale@aol.com
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Louisian& State Boand of Medical Examiners
btailing Address: P.o, Box Sozsio, New orleane, IA 7or9o'oz5o

ph''6foal Addrcee; 63o Carnp Stre€t' New Ortreaae, I-A 7or3o
Fhone: (go4) 568-58ao

Faxr (so+) 568-5754
Weh site: htto://www.lshmelonlsianaorg

Robert n"" Marier, M.D., MIIA E:<ecutive Direstor
Extenaion: e44

Emaih rmsrie(AbhneJaxilisneray

october 20, Z0Oo

Board of Darectors and General Counsei
Amerlcan Assoclation, of Fhysicians and Surgeons
f 601 N. Tuscqn Eoulevard, Su{te I
Tucson , AZ 85716'3450

Re: llonlcr Borg, il.D"

Dear slr/Madam:

over the past several months, Mon|ca Bong, M.D, has nnade numerous complalnts to varlous
state and federal agencles, state Eoverr'lment officials, members of congress, . Professional
orgEnizations, and countless qther p€rsons and_ entltles lncl.udlng yourself about..the Loulslana
StEte Bqard of Medtcal E)<amlners ('Boa,rd"), 0ts Directpr of Xnvestigatlons, Dr" Cecilia Mouton. and
related mqlters.

Mrs. Eorg's complatnts gtenl frorrr tt're Boar-d's inve$igation of, her husband, Walter Borg, M,D.
that cutminated in a publtcConsent Onder that was aPproved by Ot'.:Bprg's attorney, slgned.by
Dr. Borg, and a€cepted F€rsOnalty bV Dn" Bo.rg at a'meetins of the Board;

Wtth the excepuon of the FubllclV available Consent Orden, the subject matter of the Board's
Invesggation df Dr. Borg has been doerned confldentlal and not subJect to dlsclosure by the
Board. However, Mrs. Borg has posted certaln documents pertaining to the Investigation on a
publtcty accesslble website and for this neeson we are abhe to I'efer to thern publlcly.

Mnl, Borg's complalnts arel:ma,ilclouso def€ffiatory, Bnd cornpletely u.nfounded. The -basls fOr thls
statamefr rnay be fcxrna In a tcmer $!at I heve wrltt-Gn to thc'Attqrney-Gensial of the.StEtF of
Louistana In response to her connplainh to irlm. Thc letter is, baeed on the documents that Mrs.
Borg has rnade publtc and ts athched, without exl!lbits.,i.fo!'yoqr s'efGrence.

I would welcome an opportunlty bo dlscuss thls wlth you and/or provlde yoL{ wlth the atlachments
and/or addtdonal documentatlorr. Flease feel free to call me.

t>qnfutc.nfu
n\be.rt L. Marler, M.D.
Exbcutlve Director

Enclosure
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Fl(: (50a) Sel$l
Wiltrl Drrrot Dld:

Hon. Chatles C. Foti, Jr.
Attorney General of the State of touielana
1885 Nortlr 3* St'eet
Baton Rougc, LA 70802

Re: Compl,abt by Mouica Bong negarding Cecilia Ntoutonr M.D'
ond Alfred Gsudet' R. Ph"

Dcal Attomey General Foti:

I received a copy of Monica Borg"s July 9, 2006 letter to you that cornptains about the

conducr of Cecilia lvlouton, M.D" and Alfred Gar,rdet. R.Ph. in connoction witb theit foles in an
investigation by the Louisiana State Board of Medical Exanrinerc ("LSMBE') of Mrs. Borg's
husband. Walter Borg, M.D. upon receipl of informarion documenting potentially inrpropor
pr.esc.ribing of naf,cotica and other controlled substanc€s to [rimgelf and to Mrs. Borg. This
investigatiLn culminated iu e Cousenrl Order signed by Dr. Borg, with tlre a<lvice of counssl. (Sse

Tal-r l). Her cornplaint to you is the latest is asenes of an itl-infourred and defamatory and
urnfotrnded attacks on T)r. Montnu an(i Ntr. Gaudet that incltrde. most egregiously. the
eetablishment of a website, cec'iiiunroutorx.corn, tlre pr,upose of whiclr trPPeafs to be to blame Dr.
Mouton for an agr ecmdrt that her X'lusba.lrd and lris attorneys reached with the Board.'

The LSF&IE's Hnvestigation of Dn" Forg

Tlre Board bogan an investigation of Dr. Borg in late 2002 after learrring about
prescribing pfacdces of Dr. Borg that suggested possible vlolations of the Louisiana Medical

Praorice Act. Pharmacy records obtained in the investigation revcalcd that Dr, Borg had
repearedly prcscribed controlled dangerous substances to himself and had prescribcd controlled
dangcrous iubstanccs to Mrs. Borg. (See Tah 2).2 Records obtained fi'onl ARCOS3 confirmed

P . g 2

rMre , Borg bas writton lcfrers corrplaining aborrt Dr, Moulon to n host of pctsons and agencies, including Senltol'

Josepl.r LiJbernrarr former Sen$or Newt Gingrich, the United Ststes DeFarfiierrt of Jrsticc, thc fcderal Oltice of
Inspector Gcncral, thc Arncncan Collcgc of Fhysicians, t -d ot}rsr!. To n:y laowlcdgc. nonc of thcse pefsott8 of

cdriries hrc tsken atry $etiol io rcdponsc to hcr eomploirrte'
rphilc the consent ordel is a publicly svailsble docunrent the facls of ttrc wr<terlying invostigation orc not-sttbjcct ur

disclorru.e acoo.ling to l-ouisiana law, We have therefom been unable to respond fully to Mrt Botg't unfounded

st1gck$, Howcvcr. now tlrat Mrr, Borg has grosted a numb€u of documente reliling to the Board's invcatlgation on

hsr webgitc. we arc able m refer ro ttrem puitlcly. Eaclr exhibit to this respoasc was PosEd on Mrs' Borg'o webaite.
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that Dr, Borg had ordered large qruultitlise o{'nareotics for his offioo" despite the fact Dr. Borg did
not havc a pcrmit to_dispeus! contnolLed dangerous substallces from liis oflice as r€quirc; by
l,ouisiua law. (Sse Tab ?). The ARCOS report confirmed thnt Dr. Borg obtaincd narcotic pai;
medications, such Es Vicodiu" tr-ogtet, Lortab which are uuforrunatelylubjeot to considorable
abuse'. Mrs. Borg faults Mr. Gaudet for misstating the dosage *td u.-olunt of sorne of thc
prescriptions, but does nor, and aaunot. ahattenge the basic imd undeniable fr.ct ifiut frrg"
amotlBts of controlled dangerous slrbstances wer€ obainEd by a physician (Dr. Eorg) who couJd
not .Iawfully dispenee thcm and, flii-ther, that Ih. Borg prescri-bed lnrge am.ouut€ of such
nredications to himself and his wife" (See Tah 3).

When facsd with facts sr.rch as dlese" whioh suggost the possibility of over- andior self-
medication, tlre Board commonly asks the affected physician to miet wirh tbe Boald's
lnvestigating Officer and to submit to an evaluation f,or possi.ble $.rbstanoe rbuse. ln Dr. Borg's
casc, Dt'. Mouton met with Dr. Borg in Novenrber 2002. Mrs. Borg wns mof pr*scnt.
Following this meeting, wlrich was memonatized in Dr'. Monton's Novemhcr 18, 20O2 ietter to
Dr' Borg, Dt. Borg sgreed to uudergo an evaluation and to refrain fiom treating his wife. (See
Tab 4). Dr. Borg was provided n [isu of acceptable facilities experienced at conductilg
evaluations of physicians in such circurnstauces and lrg cbose the Falrmetto Addiction Recoverv
Center.

The rqgulte of Dr. Borg's psychological testing pcrfonned by Dr. Tony R" Young are
posted on tbe Borgs' websile. (Tab 5) Dr'. Yotmg conoludcd that Dr. tsor.g dicl not show signs of
addiction. although he did note th€ fotlowing;

Mr. Borg answffed the MMPI4 rtqn in a very defensive tnrrJ:rner- This data should be
intetprctcd with extrome caution due to dece,ption seen in the profile. Ttre L (lie) scale is
exceptionally high.

Also thc K (defcusiveness) seale is elso lrigh aud iudicativc of an individual who is not
oPen to considering potorral faults or admitting to common flaws that nrost pcople would
admit to having.

ln his lotter datod January 31, 2OO3 (Tab 6), Dr. Douglas Cook nored the following:

Waltcr admits he has been prescribing narcotics for his wife. FIe admitted trc mc that she
has placed him under pressure 0o provide these rnedications to her due to subsfance
dependence, . . .

[Dr. Borg] also beliovee thau sampies und controlled zubstancas have disappoared fronr
his offrce rcla,tcd to the substauce problerns of one or both of these individual.i.

' ARCOS is a federally sponcortd $utornate4 eonrprehenoive dnrg reporting cystcm wbich monitors the flow of
DEA controlled gubgtsrccs.
't Tbe Mionceota Multiphagic Personrlity lnventory ls erne of thc n:ost widely uscd tecls for evaluqring s6r1,
putlropsychology,
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Upon receipt of the Pdrnstto repofli and afler considerabte negotiations bctwoen sowrsel
for thc Board's Investigating Officer and Dr, Bory's counsel, Dr. Borg signed a Consent Order
on October 1, 2003 that wos approved, and acooptcd by the Board on October 20, 2003. (See Tab
1). Mrs. Borg wts rot r perty to 0he n€gothtions between Dn" Borgtc counsel tncl counsel
for the Investigntlng Officer. Thns Congent Order states as fotrlows:

lnveetigation revealed, that ovel an appfoximafcly two year period, Dr. Borg
wrote proscriptions for aonholled substafic€s for his wife, f,or l:imsclf, and f,or
"offioo use" and had ordered controlled substanc€s to be delivered to his climic for
dispensing to patients. After a raeeting with the Investigating Officer, Dr. Borg
wac etlcout'aged to undcrgo an ssrsessrnent to detennine whether Dr. Borg had a
gubstance abuse problern. Dr. Borg was also asked to produoe docunenLation
regarding his purrchase and dispensation of controlled eubetanoes,

Dr. Borg underwent a five day evaluation at the Palmetto Addiction Recovcry
Centcr in January 2OO3. Tlre written assessment produoed at the conclusion of the
evaluation stated that Dr. Borg had no problem with dependency, but
recommendod that the Boarc! require Dr. Borg to enter iuto a twelve (12) rnor:th
diagnosti c rrronitodng contraet.

Dt. Borg produced sonlc ciocumentation to thc Investigatiug Ofiicer regarding his
purchasc and dispansafiotr of conh'olled substances, but assefled tbat many of his
racords lrad been destroyod in F{rrrricane Lili. Dr. Eorg has never. had a
disparsing pormit.

Tlre Consent Order states, onA,E evidonced by his subscription heroto, Dr. Bolg
acknowlsdgcs the gubstantial accuracy of the foregoing inbrnmtiou"' snd that Dr. Borg .'hereby
waivss his rigbt to formal adjudication and, pursuant to La. R.ev. Stat, {i49:955(D), consepts to
entry of the Order set fofth hereinafter.'" The Consent Order further states,

By his BubscriPtion horeto, Dr. Borg slso aclsrowledgcs that he w&lves agy right
to whioh he may bc crrtitied pursrrant co tho Louisirlna Aclministrative h.oc€dilrc
Act, La, Rev. Stat. $$49:951 , et seE., or which otherwise nnay be af'forded to him
by law, to coDtest hls agreenncnt to or the forcc anrl effect of thl$ docurnent in
roy court o!'other forunn relnting to the matters referned to ]rereln,

Itr' Borg signed the Consent Order under oattr, with witnosses, arrd the docunrent wa$ notarized
tty his attoruey. He alryoared before the Board arrd oonfrrrned lris understanding of apd
aErocment to the accuracy of the Order and the terms and condirions imposed by it. Dr, Borg
llever appcaled the Cousent Order to the disffiet court &rd had no real basis to do so since it was
signed by him and negotiatcd and approved by his counsol.

Resgronses €o Mns" Borg's Allegations

In resporxe to Mrs. Borg's allegatiolrs, I offer the following:
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A- lrnproperly sending Dn, Bon'g lnto nn ealcolroMdrneg t'ehob pnoblern' for
evuluation by a nelapring aleolrolic.

As shown qbovs, Dr, tsorg voluntarilv submittsd to arl evuluation at the Patrnetio
Recovery Center after he wae confronted with irrcfutabls ovidence showing that he orderod large
quaniities of cortrollod substa$ces for delivory to Iris of,Eco and prescribed controlled dangcrous
substanoes to himself andhis wife. trf Dr. Borg and his counsel wele unlrappy with Palmetto's
evaluation, they could have gone elsewhere. They chose not to <1o so. Despite Mrs. Borg's
intimations, drere is oo evidence that Dr. Douglas Cook was impaired at the tirne of Dr^ Borg's
evaluation, HarI Dr. Borg gncpooted Dr. Cook was inrpaired at tlre tirne, prcsumably he would
have brought it to somoonc's attentiou" He did not, Rrrtherrnoreo Dr, Cook was ody one
member of a multi-disciplinat'y tea&n that evaluated Dr. Borg and agreed oll the
t?comrnondations,

B. DlsregrrcllngBoardes gu[de[tues durlngluvestigatlon.

Mrs. Borg complains that Dr. Mouton did not follow tXre Boatd's owrl guidelines duriug
its investigation of her husband. Ttris staternent is false arrd. d.efamarory. Mrs. Borg has uot
shown any violation of, a guideli$e that has been adopted by the Louisiana State Board of
Medical Examincn. Instea{ she nelics on a "'Rqtort of the Acl lloc Cornmittee on Physician
Impairment" of the Federatjon of Stste tsoards of Exasriners that on its facc states it is a rnere
"r€cornnrendation" to state medioal boards. Furthor, thc Rcport clcarly statEs that most
physioiarrs will cnter the IPP (an ""irapaired physician pncgratn") voluntarily or by a Board
manrdate," (Tab 7). In Dr, Borg's oase, he went to Paluretto voluntarily based'on clcar aud
undisputed documentary widcnce showing that large amounts of nareotics and other controlled
subslaoces wEre obhined by Dr^ Borg, unttr no clear documentation of their trltimate destination.
Dr. Borg and bis couusel negotiated a eonsont Ordel to concludc the Board's investigation; the
Conscnt Order was never appealod.

C. Using f,alee phenrnaey neponte dnrring inveetigatEon"

Mrs. Borg does not dispute that her husband presoribecl large arnolrrrts of narcotics and
othcr controlled substanaes to hirrself Bnd to her. Nor does she dispute that he ordcrert large
a,mounts of such mcdications fcrr hts offiee. despite the fact he did rrct hilve a permit to dispense
them and had no lecords showing to whotn or why they were diepensod. Instead, shp foouses on
alleged discrepaneies betwecn her: attomey's and Mr- Gaudct's sumrnalies of the prescription
records. Significantly" the attor:neys have only suggesrcd that Mr. Gaudet made s.ri crror in
transcribing the dosags or duration of eertain medications or that he rnistakenly concluded that
oortain mcdications wcre filled when tbey were not Tbar level of detail waa not relevant to the
Board's conccm about Dr. Borg's proscribing and dispensing violations; instea4 the Board's
irrvestigator and Mr:. Gaudet were concemcd with Dr. Borg's undeniable pattem of ordoring
large quantities of controlled dangercus substances for apparent dispensing (ot usc) at his office
arrd his pattetn of prescribrng narcotics and other coDtrollod daugerous subatanoes to himself and
a family mcrnber. Thesc facts are crysta! elear in Mr, Gaudot's sumrnary and f,ormed tbe basis
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for the Board's investigatiou of Er. Borg tha{ was concludcd with the Coruqrt Orcter lregotioted
by him and his oounsel.

D. Improper Cornmmnrmicot"ion by Dn. Kirn Edward n eBlanc

Mrs. Borg complains that the Frcsident of thc Board, Dr. I(im LsBlanc, irnproperly
threaterred hsr in an effort to end het'comptraints, As you c&& sso fiom Dr. LeBlanc's lettcr,
attaclred as Tab 8. he rne,rely advised fuIrs, Borg drat thc Board's luvestigation of her husband
was confidential and that her attaoks on Dr. Motrton wcre improper and unfouuded. Bccause of
the false and defam&tory nttrre of her attacks on Dt'. Moutou and tlrc Board, Dr, LeBlanc
properly provided fair wanirrg that the Board may pursue )egal recourse if sinrilar anacks
continued.

In surnrnary, Mrs. Borg's eompiaiut is apparcntly rootod in hcr dismay about thc Con.sent
Order that hcr husband and his oonnsel negotiat€d witlr the Board *fter he was found to be
unlawfuUy dispensing controlled substallces ftom his officc and was prescribiug narcotics to
birnself and to lrcr. Mx. Borg lras no 6rst hand knowledge of the Board's investigation or the
negotiations betwoen hcr hustrar:d"s counsel and the Board that ied to the Cons€nt Order'. This
lack of knowledge does not excuse trrer vicious and unfounded attacks on the Board and its
employees.

lf I cau pncvide ftulher information in response to Mrs. Eorg's allegations, tr would be
happy to do so.

Sinoercly,
(-

",, (oh<^ t- 
''d/L 

ov1" (A
Rbben L. Marier, M.D.
Executive Director





LIST OF INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE KNWOLEDGE
ABOUT CONDUCT OF DR. CECILIA MOUTON

o George Farber, M.D. Dermatologist. Kenner;
o Phone: (504) 471 31'35

o John Pieksen, Esq. Attorne)'. New Orleans;
o Phone: (504) 581 9322

o Jonathan Stein, M.D. Cardiologist" New Iberia;
o Phone: (337)367 1936

o Marcus Pittman, PCP, candidate for LSMB, Kennerl
o Phone: (985) 8923661

o Monica A. Borg, M.D. retired physician. Lafayette;
o Phone: (337\ 519 4119

o Vahe Sarkissian, M.D. Neurosurgerl'Resident, New Orleans;
o Phone:  (415)  308 8342

o Walter P. Borgo M.D. Endocrinologist. Lafayette;
o Phone: (337) 577 0033
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LIST OF EXHIBITS enclosed as PDF documents on CD-ROM
This file is also available at:

www.ceciliamouton.com

o Exhibit 1: Dr. Mouton's l-etter dated lIll8l02.

o Exhibit2: Dr. Mouton's Letter dated 0I122103'

o Exhibit 3: Pharmacy Investigative reports and related documents.

o Exhibit 4: Reference letters for Drs. Walter and Monica Borg by Yale University
Senior Faculty Members.

o Exhibit 5: Letter from Dr. Borg"s attorney - A. Rosenberg, Esq. to Dr. Mouton

0l  /08/03

r Exhibit 6: Dr. Walter Borg's Consent Order 10120103.

o Exhibi t 7 z Dr. Cook's Assessment l-etler 0l131103 and related documents.

o Exhibit 8: Dr. Gad and Mr. Kimbal, LCSW Letter dated 06122104 requesting

termination of monitoring contract.

o Exhibit 9: Insurance Delisting Chronology and related documents.

o Exhibit l0: Petit ions to LSBME dated: 03104105,Q5102105,07106105,07118105-

o Exhibit I I : Guidelines of the Federation of State Medical Boards.

o Exhibit 12: Dr. Cook's Consent Orders with LSBME 12107104 and 04112105.

o Exhibit 13: Malpractice claim against Dr. Cook fi led on behalf of Dr. Borg

07112104.

r Exhibit 14: Judgment of the Fifth District Court dated 07127104.

o Exhibit 15: Memorandum in Support of Motion to Compel Deposition of Dr.

Mouton

o Exhibit 16: Documents related to release of Monica Borg's medical records from

LSBME.

o Exhibit l7: Miscellaneous Documents.





LSBME:
UNUSUAL DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS

LSBME Disciplinarv Statistic
The LSBME own statistical data available to the
public on the Web at:
htlp:,"u n u . lsbnrc. louisiana.qor' /discip-action--stEls I  Lt j l ' -r
revealed the following trends:
o Amounts of complaints handled increased from

'1,484 
in the year 1996 to 1770 in 2006 (increased

1 . 2 )
. Serious disciplinary actions increased from 43 in

the year 1996 to 155 in 2006 ( increased 3.6
t imes)

. Amount of Consent Orders ("guilty pleas") etc.
increased from 120 in the year 1996 to 312 in
2006 (increased 2.6 times)

Conclusions:
. The amount of complaints lodged r.r'ith LSBME

has no1! increased much during last l0 years;
o During the same time,

o amount of serious disciplinarl actions
has increased almost four (4) times,

o amount of intermediate sanctions
increased almost three (3) times.

Review of LSBME Newsletter 2000-2006 revealed
at leasl 58 (fifty eight) cases of physician discipline
that appeared to be unusual. There was a clear
discrepancy between the alleged violations and
disciplinary measures applied by LSBME. Cerlain
physicians (e.g. Dr. Cook or Dr. Coialuca) were

treated very leniently; others (e.g. Dr. Burch,
Dr.Martin. dr. Zuckerman, and Dr. Shuth) were

treated very harshlY.

The LSBME disciplinary records pertaining to those
cases (including Consent Orders, Post-Hearing
Orders. etc.) have been obtained from the LSBME.
Such documents are public records. Review of those
public documents confirmed the initial impression
about the hap-hazardous nature of LSBME
discipline. The names of the physicians who has
been subjected to this unusual (too lenient or too

harsh) discipline by the LSBME are listed below:

l. Dr. Douglas W. Cook, Raryille

2. Dr. John R. Colaluca, RaYville
3. Dr. Steven J. Zuckerman, Baton Rouge
1. Dr. SammY lVI. Okole' Jefferson
5. Dr. Patricia M. Burch, LafaYette
6. Dr. Walter Borg, LafaYette
7. Dr. Louis F. Martin, New Orleans
8. Dr. Claudia R. Schuth, New Orleans
9. Dr. Pedro N. Romaguera' Kenner
10. Dr. Victor Brown, New Orleans

11. Dr. George Allan Farber' Kenner
12. Dr. James Arthur Freeman, Baton Rouge
13. Dr. Fernando Jesus Martinez, Jr., Metairie
14. Dr. Wanda Timpton-Holto New Orleans
15. Dr..Iames R. Alexander, Shreveport
16. Dr. James Richard Bass, Lafayette
17. Dr. Jacqueline Cleggett-Lucas, NOLA
18. Dr. Mark M. Cotter, Baton Rouge
19. Dr. Lynn E. Foret, Lake Charles
20. Dr. Leslie E. Lawrence. New Orleans
2L, Dr. Louis Frank Martin, New Orleans
22. Dr. Dr. Darryl T. Mueller, New Orleans
23. Dr. Elizabeth M. Oliveira. New Orleans
24. Dr. Nlark A. Portacci, Angola
25. Dr. Richard E. Sabatier, Slidell
26. Dr. Morris Alan Sandler, New Orleans
27. Dr. Raymond S. Alexander, Baton Rouge
28. Dr. Sharon R. Bass, Morgan CitY
29. Dr. Leon Frances Beridon, Simmesport
30. Dr. Mike Edwin Bozeman. Jr, Pinneville
31. Dr. Jason M. DeRouen' Baton Rouge
32. Dr. Stephen Neal Fisher, Pennsylvania
33. Dr. Douglas Eugene llall, Morgan City
34. Dr. William Ben Hart, Covington
35. Dr. Russell Levy, Metairie
36. Dr. Lawrence J. McManus' Slidell
37. Dr. Bruce Donald Moses, Pineville
38. Dr. Richard Clement, Lake Charles
39. Dr. Charles P. Lahaye, Ville Platte
40. Dr. Roy Gabriel LaSalle' New Iberia
41. Dr. Herbert A. lVlcPherson, New Iberia
42. Dr. Wallace Rubin, Metairie
43. Dr. Charles B. Woodward, Laker Charles
44. Dr. Calvin E. Williams, Jr, New Orleans
45. Dr. Wade Hampton Allain' Shreveport
46. Dr. John S. Merriman, Shreveport
47. Dr. Walter O. Sanders, Jr, St. Tammany
48. Dr. Heber Edward Dunaway, Jr' Metairie
49. Dr. Ernest Gresham Jr' New Orleans
50. Dr. Sheila Jayne Kalka, Baton Rouge
51. Dr. Joseph George Pastorek II, New Orleans
52. Dr. David Michael Sherman, Missouri
53. Dr. Abdel Raham Mohamed Ali Almasri'

Denham Spring
54. Dr. Leonard Ray Collier' Winnfield
55. Dr. George Pierre Desormeaux, Abbeville
56. Dr. Charles Raymond Genovese, Jr, Bogalusa
57. Dr. Wlater Olivier Sanders, Slidell
58. Dr. David Charles Vajnar, St. Bernard
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